From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:27:40 PM
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DANIELA DEBACA | Senior Code Enforcement Officer

Code Enforcement | Neighborhood Revitalization Program

Planning and Economic Development | 100 Santa Rosa Ave. Rm 3 | Santa Rosa, CA 95404
Tel. (707) 543-3463 | Fax (707) 543-3218 | ddebaca@srcity.org
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***please be advised my work hours are Tuesday-Friday, 8am-5pm***

Coming March 2025, the Planning, Building, and Engineering Divisions of the City of Santa
Rosa's Planning and Economic Development Department will fully transition to an online
application submittal process through the Accela Citizen Access platform. Learn more
about the Online Permitting System here, and more information will be coming soon!

From: DeBaca, Daniela
Sent: Friday, January 3, 2025 7:55 AM

Tos krohn, Loura

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation

Hello
I’'m happy to answer any questions:

1. What is the primary reason for the proposed changes?
Last February (2024) members of the community organized a meeting with City officials,
representatives, and various organizations to express their concerns about illicit massage
businesses that have settled in and the fact that it also involves victims of human
trafficking. Since then a multitude of events have taken place such as training, contacts,
enforcement actions, inspections, etc and what we have learned is that the current
Massage Ordinance was very outdated. It referenced laws that no longer exist (or have
been relocated/rewritten) and was lacking in the ability to effectively enforce the issues
we were encountering. The revised ordinance will provide more structure that will
encourage good behavior and eliminate the bad actors.

2. Will these proposed changes impact rate of pay in any way?
No, the City does not regulate the rate of pay.

3. Will these proposed changes require specific documentation of certification for
providers?



Santa Rosa








The current ordinance already has a requirement for CAMTC certification for all persons
providing services and will remain. This is also a State requirement therefore it cannot
be left out.

This is only the tip of the iceberg. | know you (as well as others) will have plenty more questions to
come. Our desire is to prevent significant negative impacts on the legitimate businesses operating in
good standing which is why we are deeply interested in your perspective and needs. | think you will
also be pleased to know that we have carved out some exemptions for businesses such as yours.
The primary intent is to discourage and eliminate the bad actors in the community that negatively
impact the safety of the surrounding neighborhoods as well as the integrity and safety of the
legitimate technicians and establishments. | hope you find this information helpful. If you have any
other questions, please feel free to reach out.

DANIELA DEBACA| Senior Code Enforcement Officer

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

From: Kronn, Loura I

Sent: Thursday, January 2, 2025 3:46 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] Re: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation

Hello Daniela,

Thank is kind of you to offer to touch base. | only have a couple questions that maybe you can
answer and maybe not:

1. What is the primary reason for the proposed changes?

2. Willthese proposed changes impact rate of pay in any way?

3. Willthese proposed changes require specific documentation of certification for

providers?



In health,

Laura Krohn, MPH, CWWS, CWP
Executive Director, Wellness
FLAMINGO RESORT
0:707-526-0529
C:707-339-1312

laura.krohn ramidglobal.com

2021 Best Rad Hotel Redesign
Sunset Magazine Travel Awards

From: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Sent: Thursday, January 2, 2025 2:05 PM

Tos Krohn, Loura

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Re: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation

Hi Laura

Thank you for reaching out. What we currently have is still a working draft and | have not yet been
authorized to release it to the public. Should | receive the green light before the meeting | will
definitely send it over to you. In the mean time, | can be available to chat with you and provide an
idea of the substance. If you're interested, let me know a good time and we can schedule a call.

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

Sent: Thursday, January 2, 2025 1:44 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation



Hello,

| am the Exec Dir of Wellness at The Flamingo Resort & Spa. Thank you so much for including
me in this important meeting notice!

Canyou send the proposed changes to study before the meeting?

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
Sent: Thursday, January 2, 2025 1:05 PM

Subject: Massage Business Community Meeting Invitation

Dear Valued Massage Business Owner,

The City of Santa Rosa is committed to supporting legitimate massage businesses while ensuring the
safety and well-being of our community. To that end, we are proposing some changes to our city's
massage regulations.

We understand that these changes may impact your business, and we want to hear from you. We
are committed to being business-friendly and finding solutions that accommodate the legitimate
needs of massage businesses to the greatest extent possible while providing an effective
enforcement mechanism for illicit massage establishments.

We invite you to attend a community meeting to learn more about the proposed changes and
provide your valuable input.

Meeting Date: January 14th, 2025

Time: 5:00 PM to 7:00 PM

Location: City Hall Council Chambers, 100 Santa Rosa Ave.

(Please be advised the meeting will not be available for viewing online)

We will share more details about the proposed changes and provide an opportunity for open



discussion.

Your input is crucial to the success of these regulations. We encourage you to attend and share your
perspectives.

Although we have made our best effort to locate contact information for all businesses that may be
effected, we realize there may be those that we were unable to find or have incomplete
information. Please feel free to share this invitation with any colleagues you feel may be interested
in attending.

We look forward to seeing you there.

Sincerely,

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

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Outcall massges

Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:28:43 PM
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
Sent: Monday, January 13, 2025 7:56 AM

Tos Mil2 Samadarshan- [

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Outcall massges

Good morning Mila

Thank you for your email. We have made some allowances for out calls (though not using that term)
which fall in alignment with the conditions you’re addressing. We agree those services are vital and
do not want to negatively impact a vulnerable population. Your email is being forwarded to
management staff for consideration and input. We do hope to see you at the meeting.

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




From: Mila Samadarshana_

Sent: Tuesday, January 7, 2025 1:19 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Outcall massges

Dear Daniela,

| will be short, | imagine you are receiving a lot of emails.

Prohibition of outcall massages will negatively effect many Santa Rosa citizens.

| personally work from my office, but do have clients that | visit at home. These are
usually people with severe health problems that can not visit my office. They have to
stay mostly in bed, have breathing problems or are unable to move. In the past | have
had a client at a nursing home. Massages are essencial to those clients as being
unable to move freely they develop serious issues which massage helps to regulate.
And as aditional benefit it helps them emotionally to recive massage care.

Making this option illigal will put those vulnarable clients in a very hard situation. |
hope this information is taken in consideration.

With much respect.
Milla Veretilnyk, CMT



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Massage Therapy business proposed changes in city regulations and ordinances
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:28:27 PM

Attachments: image001.png

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

Sent: Monday, January 13, 2025 8:15 AM

To: susan ir | - < Thorpson I
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Massage Therapy business proposed changes in city regulations and
ordinances

Good morning Ms. Kirk

Thank you for your email. We have made some allowances for out calls (though not using that term)
which fall in alignment with the conditions you’re addressing. We agree those services are vital and
do not want to negatively impact a vulnerable population. Your email is being forwarded to
management staff for consideration and input. Unfortunately, we are unable to provide a copy of
the ordinance at this time due to it still being in draft form and not yet approved for public
dissemination. The major change is the requirement to obtain a Massage Establishment Certificate
and the application process. For legitimate businesses such as yours, the required information is
not expected to have a negative impact. Our main objective is to eliminate the bad actors and
prevent future establishments from (very easily) coming into our community. We do hope to see
you at the meeting. If you would like to chat, please feel free to contact me.

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

From: susan irk

Sent: Tuesday, January 7, 2025 10:36 AM

To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>; Andrea Thompson ||| G

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Massage Therapy business proposed changes in city regulations and ordinances

Hello Daniela,

I left a message for you eatrlier at your office but realized it may no longer be necessary, as
I received an email from CAMTC shortly after that included your contact information.

We are currently adjusting our schedules to attend the upcoming meeting. In the
meantime, we would greatly appreciate it if you could share the proposed changes to the
current regulations. We have participated in previous meetings with CAMTGC, the city
council, and the police departments, and we want to stay informed about any updates. It
would be helpful to know what the changes are before the meeting.

We are particularly concerned that some of the proposed regulations might negatively
impact legitimate businesses like ours. One issue that stands out is the proposed
restriction on outcall visits.

Such a change would significantly affect many legitimate businesses, especially those like
ours that provide medical massage services. It would also impact clients who are
homebound due to illness or disability, as well as others who prefer at-home massage
services for convenience and relaxation. For many, the ability to receive care at home is
not just a preference but a necessity.

We strongly oppose this regulation, as it would limit access to essential services for those
who need them most. Outcall services are a vital part of our industry, supporting both
health and well-being.

Could you please share the details of any other proposed changes so that we can come to
the meeting prepared?

Thank you for addressing these important issues. We understand there is much to
consider, and we appreciate the time and effort involved in this process.

Susan Kirk
Andrea Thompson



Susan Kirk, CMT
Medical Massage Therapist/Instructor

Village Therapeutics Collective

707*570%2025
villagetherapeutics.com



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] SR City Mobile Massage
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:28:57 PM
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
Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 12:42 PM

Tos T Fallon I

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] SR City Mobile Massage

Good afternoon Ms. Fallon

Thank you for your response. Your input in this area is very important to us and we are interested in
hearing your perspective. | hope that you will be in attendance so that we may continue a more
detailed dialogue with you and others in your situation. The ordinance has not yet been finalized
therefore your input has the potential to be impactful. We look forward to seeing you there.

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




From: T Failon

Sent: Friday, January 10, 2025 10:49 AM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] SR City Mobile Massage

Dear Reader,

| am a mobile massage therapist in the city of Santa Rosa CA.

| have an Associate Degree in Nursing from the SRJC. | hold the CAMTC certificate and was notified
by CAMTC via email that the city of Santa Rosa will be holding a meeting this January 14th. regarding
mobile massage therapy.

| ask that you continue to allow Mobile Massage Therapy in SR City to CAMTC certificate holders.
This is my livelyhood. | recently closed my brick and mortar massage business as the overhead was
too much to bear and have gone back to having a mobile massage business in the city of Santa Rosa
CA.

| feel the scrutiny of CAMTC and their requirements to obtain and hold their certification should be
considered and held in high regard when making your decision as to continue to allow mobile
massage therapy in the city of Santa Rosa CA.

Thank you in advance for your consideration in this matter. It is my hope that you will continue to
allow Mobile Massage Therapy in Santa Rosa.

Respectfully,

Teresa Fallon, CMT

CAMTC#85355

Associate Degree Nursing

Sent from my iPhone



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Massage Establishment Ordinance Update
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:30:51 PM
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

Sent: Wednesday, January 22, 2025 5:24 PM

To: Ron |

Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Massage Establishment Ordinance Update

Good evening Mr. Lowe,

Thank you for your insight, it was very helpful. We are currently drafting changes to accommodate
uses such as yours and will be recommending the same to the City Council in March. Your input and
that of your colleagues has been critical to the development of this ordinance. We are accepting
input through the month of February. If you or your colleagues have any further thoughts, ideas,
insight, please do not hesitate to communicate with us. We have also developed a list of those
requesting to receive a copy of the new ordinance draft which you have been added to. Once it is
complete, we will be sure to send it out.

Thanks again. Hope you have an enjoyable evening.

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

From: ron .

Sent: Tuesday, January 21, 2025 9:14 AM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Massage Establishment Ordinance Update

Dear Ms DeBaca,

| hope this email finds you well. | recently attended the online meeting
discussing the Massage Establishment Ordinance Update, and | found
the information shared to be enlightening. As a licensed California
massage therapist, under CAMTC since 2009 (#14451), | need to
understand how these impending ordinance changes might impact my
private practice.

Prior to 2009, | registered with the City to get the required registration
and training. | have worked from home for 20+ years_
- Santa Rosa, CA 95403) and maintained a City of Santa Rosa
Business Tax Certification.

As a 72-year-old, | embarked on my career in the massage business
many years ago, driven by my passion for helping others. As you might
know, being a massage therapist is not just a job, for me; it is a vocation
that allows me to connect with people on a deeper level, promoting
better health and well-being within the community. Furthermore, the
classification of my practice as a “home occupation” has made it viable
for me to continue working even into my retirement years.

Currently, | work part-time, seeing anywhere from zero to two clients a



day. This part-time schedule allows me to do what | love while
maintaining a balance with other aspects of my life. However, | rely
significantly on the income | generate from my massage therapy
sessions. Given the cost of living in Santa Rosa, my Social Security
benefit alone is insufficient to cover my basic living expenses. Without
the supplemental income from my massage business, | face
considerable financial hardship.

It is with this understanding of my current situation that | reach out for
your support or consideration regarding policies affecting home-based
businesses like mine. | believe in the importance of allowing massage
therapist to engage in work, which not only aids in their financial
stability but also enhances the quality of life in Sonoma County.

| would like to know how the zoning changes to “massage-related use”
and the “live-work / work-live” property use changes will affect my
ability to support myself.

| am hopeful that there can be a dialogue that allows for both the City’s
goals of eliminating illicit establishments and the sustenance of
legitimate therapist like myself.

Thank you for your time, and for considering the realities faced by
those of us who cherish our professions and our ability to contribute to
our community even after traditional retirement age. | welcome any
dialogue on how we might better support individuals in positions like
mine.

Best Regards,
Ron Lowe - CAMTC #14451



PS: | would like to request a copy of the new ordinance when a draft is
available. Please let me know if there is an updated website with this
ordinance change.



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Massage Ordinance Santa Rosa Ca 2025
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:32:10 PM
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

Sent: Wednesday, January 29, 2025 2:47 PM

To: Stacey Richards ||| N <« Lou <kirk@srcity.org>
Cc: tlsachsen@srcity.org; Stapp, Mark <MStapp@srcity.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Massage Ordinance Santa Rosa Ca 2025

Good afternoon Ms. Richards,

Thank you for your insight, it was very helpful bringing valuable information to light. We are
currently reviewing the various laws/resources and consulting with our City Attorneys Office to
ensure the ordinance is not in conflict. Your input and that of your colleagues has been critical to
the development of this ordinance. We are accepting input through the month of February. If you
or your colleagues have any further thoughts, ideas, insight, please do not hesitate to communicate
with us. We have also developed a list of those requesting to receive a copy of the new ordinance
draft which you have been added to. Once it is complete, we will be sure to send it out.

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

From: Stacey Richards_

Sent: Saturday, January 25, 2025 11:51 AM

To: Kirk, Lou <Ikirk@srcity.org>

Cc: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>; tlsachsen@srcity.org; Stapp, Mark <MSta srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Fwd: Massage Ordinance Santa Rosa Ca 2025

Dear City of Santa Rosa Planning, Lou Kirk, Daniela DeBaca, to whom this may
concern,
1/25/2025

My name is Stacey Richards Murray. | am a massage therapist, practicing for 30 years
in the city of Santa Rosa.

| am writing to you today to urge the city of Santa Rosa to accept any verifiable
source of education that meets the Massage Therapy Act standards as acceptable
proof to practice massage in the city of Santa Rosa. No one agency should act as the
sole agency for meeting massage therapist requirements when there are many.

| am a 1994 graduate of National Holistic Institute in Emeryville and a member of the
American Massage Therapy Association (AMTA). As a member of AMTA | am required
to have a 500-hour certificate from an accredited school and to report continuing
education hours to remain in good standing. AMTA membership also gives myself and
other therapists liability insurance along with other professional benefits. It is also a
good resource for the public to find a therapist anywhere in the nation that holds the
required education, is active in learning, and carries liability insurance.

It concerns me to allow one agency such as California Massage Therapy Council
(CAMTC) to serve as the sole agency for meeting operating criteria in the new
ordinance for practicing massage therapy in the city of Santa Rosa. There are already
many different organizations, national and international, that therapists already
belong to that demonstrate compliance with the state of California Massage Therapy
Act and provide proof of education, legitimacy, and a robust depth of services and
resources that exceed that of CAMTC.

Currently, CAMTC has proposed to the city that it turn its voluntary role in the state



into a mandate to practice in the city of Santa Rosa. CAMTC far reaching and
legislation still needs working to be mandatory at this point in my opinion and that of
the State at this time.

Why is this a bad idea?

1. Handing over control to one agency, specifically CAMTC, poses a long-term
impact to the diversity of massage therapy in the healing arts field. National
and international organizations already exist that may not be CAMTC-qualified,
thus putting the CAMTC agency in an exclusive position.

2. The mandate would be redundant to current longer standing and effective
national oversight.There are many long-standing organizations that could
provide easy verification of a massage therapists legitimacy and education to
support the Massage Therapy Act Law. Below you will find links to the law and
some of those organizations.

National AMTA already provides oversight, resources, and training. It requires
the same or higher criteria that members must maintain.
https://www.amtamassage.org/

Board Certification in Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork is another
organization that meets and exceeds California and CAMTC requirements to
practice massage. This organization is accepted in most of the states for
practicing massage

https://ncbtmb.org/board-certification/

Abmp
https://www.abmp.com/updates/legislative-updates/california

FsMTB
https://fsmtb.org/

Massage Therapy Foundation
https://massagetherapyfoundation.org/community-service

Massage Therapy Act (Current California Law)

&d|V|5|on 2&t|t|e &part= &chapter 10.5. &art|cle-

3. The CAMTC mandate would be costly. It would burden new and existing
therapists at $300 every two years to get or keep their license in addition to
already long standing membership. CAMTC costs create a burden on the
therapists just starting out or providing massage as a supplemental income.
High CAMTC dues may discourage massage therapists from pursuing continuing
education courses beyond the minimum requirements and getting liability
insurance, or force them to raise their rates to cover the costs of continuing



education, insurance, and dues. This could in turn increase cost to clients and
affect the accessibility of massage therapy for those that use massage to
manage pain, stress or other health symptoms.

Before the proposed changes and new increase in business tax in Santa Rosa,
business tax was between $50 and $65; annual AMTA dues that include
liability insurance is $235. In general | spend between $800 to $2000 in
continuing education a year. The new fees would be: The new flat $200 for
business tax, $235 for AMTA liability insurance and $300 from CAMTC. For a
new therapist these fees could feel like a burden and could result in non
compliance.

The CAMTC organization is and should remain voluntary. CAMTC should not be
involved in policing Massage Therapy Ordinance at this time but be used as a source
along with others to verify a therapists legitimacy under the existing state law of
Massage Therapy Act. CAMTC's proposal is overreaching, especially as other
organizations already exist to verify, track and legitimate massage therapists. Please
keep the Massage Therapy Ordinance open to other means of proof of education to
prove legitimacy beyond that of CAMTC. Please do not give sole authority to CAMTC to
make its voluntary organization a mandate in the city of Santa Rosa. CAMTC is a great
resource but not ready to be in sole control of Massage Therapy.

| would be happy to discuss this issue further with you to provide any help or
clarification as you rewrite the city's Massage Therapy ordinance.

Sincerely,
Stacey Richards Murray Massage Therapy



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: Follow up to massage meeting

Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:31:20 PM
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

Sent: Thursday, January 30, 2025 9:13 AM
To: Karen Rutkowski ||| G
Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Subject: RE: Follow up to massage meeting

Good morning Ms. Rutkowski,

Thank you for your insight, it was very helpful bringing valuable information to light. We are
currently drafting changes to accommodate uses such as yours and will be recommending the same
to the City Council in March. Your input and that of your colleagues has been critical to the
development of this ordinance. We are accepting input through the month of February. If you or
your colleagues have any further thoughts, ideas, insight, please do not hesitate to communicate
with us. We have also developed a list of those requesting to receive a copy of the new ordinance
draft which you have been added to. Once it is complete, we will be sure to send it out.

Thanks again. Hope you have an enjoyable day.
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

From: Karen Rutkowski ||| G

Sent: Friday, January 17, 2025 10:10 AM

To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>

Cc: Kirk, Lou <|kirk@srcity.org>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Follow up to massage meeting

Good morning!

Thank you for contacting me regarding the meeting for code ordinance changes. | did attend the
meeting. | would like to receive a copy of the proposed draft to review. | was quite confused on the
intent of direction of the meeting from the City of Santa Rosa. What | took away from the meeting
was that City of SR will be mandating that that ALL practicing Massage Therapists/Practitioners will
need to be certified under the CAMTC regulations and have an Establishment Business Certificate in
order to provide services. Thus having to go through the zoning clearance process to get approved.
This step may provide "teeth " to law enforcement to prosecute illegal establishments working
under the guise of a legitimate Massage operation.

| support the City of Santa Rosa efforts to try and control the Human trafficking plight. | am not quite
convinced that what is being proposed is the right direction to take without impacting legitimate
Massage Therapists/Practitioners.

In conjunction to being a Massage Practitioner (CAMTC member), | am also a Licensed Esthetician
and Nail Technician. My regulatory committee is the CA Board of Barbering and Cosmology; it
requires that if | am to provide mobile services | must apply for a specialized permit (Mobile Unit
permit) beyond that of my licenses and my Establishment License. If the city is looking to try and
regulate mobile/out call Massage services, they may consider a sub category additional to the new
proposed ordinance. The BBC also has a permit requirement for home based licensing. It is required
that if a licensed person is providing services from their residence the work space must have the
following: a separate entrance into the work space (customer may not enter through main residence
to go to work space) AND there must be a separate restroom within the work space that is not used
by primary residence.

| would like to be notified with any additional meetings about this subject in order to attend.
Respectfully,

Karen Rutkowski
KMR Skincare Massage Nails






From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Concerned Citizens Illicit Massage Business Update
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:33:43 PM

Attachments: human trafficking awareness - massage businesses.pdf

NY Times IMB Article.pdf
image001.png

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

From: Kurtis Bennett_

Sent: Friday, January 31, 2025 10:08 AM

Tos kurts sennet: [

Cc: _CityCouncilListPublic <citycouncil@srcity.org>; Cregan, John <JCregan@srcity.org>;
_;_; Osburn, Gabe <GOsburn@srcity.org>; DeBaca,
Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>; Beverly May ||| N >; Ahmos Netanel
I - 0)on IR i Vit o, I
Lisa Diaz-McQuaid ||| G 2 'stic. Madison
|

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Concerned Citizens lllicit Massage Business Update

To all:
As usual, concerned community members are bcc'ed for
privacy.

I'm writing to provide you with an update on the rewrite of



Polaris::

Human Trafficking in lllicit Massage Businesses

There are an estimated 7,500 to 9,000 illicit massage businesses (IMBs) currently in operation in the United States. |MBs are a venue
that use the cover of a legitimate bodywork or massage business to provide commercial sex acts to a customer base of sex buyers.
Many of the IMBs nationwide are at risk for engaging of human trafficking. These commercial-front brothels can include businesses
claiming to provide massage, spas, reflexology, foot massage, bodywork, and modeling. Many of these venues are not actually
individual businesses, but are instead part of larger networks that follow similar operating structures across numerous locations.

Networks of these venues enable traffickers to exploit vulnerable women for commercial sex and labor. The larger the network, the
greater the likelihood that an illicit massage business in that network is engaged in human trafficking. These networks facilitate the
recruitment of women, primarily foreign nationals, and their movement between locations to have a continuous rotation of “new”
women available for buyers. Trafficking cases have been confirmed by law enforcement and service providers from New York to
California, and from provinces in China and parts of South Korea and Thailand. Methods of control and coercion in IMBs include
false promises, deceptive recruitment, lies, manipulation, debt bondage, threats, and intimidation. Focusing on disrupting criminal
networks rather than a single business front or arresting the women themselves means disrupting the exploitation of women in
these venues.

The average IMB network contains 2-3 individual IMB locations. Based on revenue estimates of IMBs that have been closed by law
enforcement — the average IMB can net around $250,000 in a year. The average IMB owner can easily earn over half a million
dollars a year with 2-3 IMBs in a network and frequently requiring that victims pay down their debt with interest. Networks often
place their businesses across different jurisdictions to avoid detection by any one law enforcement agency and to continue to collect
their profits across a number of individual locations.

Polaris’ Disruption Strategies team launched the campaign to End Trafficking in IMBs to raise awareness about the reality of
trafficking in IMBs, to equip stakeholders to permanently close these commercial-front venues, to provide survivors with culturally
appropriate services, and to proactively respond to the needs of the field. The campaign is anticipated to run until 2020.

VIV ’ *
PREVALENCE OF U.S. ILLICIT MASSAGE BUSINESSES ASUR OR’s STORY

Min came to Los Angeles from the Fujian province in China. She
had dropped out of school in the 9" grade but had worked hard
all her life. Her husband had always gambled and now had more

debts than they could pay, so she came to visit a friend and look
for work. She found an online ad for women to work as massage
therapists near L.A. and was promised $6,000 a month. She took
a bus to the location and was told that in order to earn the
money she had promised her family, she would have to engage
in commercial sex. This isn’t what the initial ad described.

Min did not know where she was and was terrified her family
might find out what had happened. Every few weeks, she would
be moved but was told that she was still near L.A. When police in
Houston arrested her traffickers, Min was not sure where she
was. The Houston police helped connect Min with service
providers in Houston and then L.A. They helped Min understand
her rights and helped her enroll in night classes. She is happy

Numbers of IMBs

High Low

learning again and working with law enforcement to bring justice
to her traffickers.

*Based on composite information from dozens of survivors, service providers, and

O Victims are primarily recruited in New York City, Los Angeles, and San Francisco. academic research






Disruption Strategies — Engagement and Systems Shift

The following sections describe areas of work that Polaris is engaged in as part of the IMB campaign:

Law Enforcement Engagement:

e |dentify and elevate promising practices

e Assist the field in streamlining current
processes across stakeholder groups and
provide resources where needed

e Connect innovators and change makers across
agencies and jurisdictions to facilitate peer-led
shifts in processes and systems

Policy Work

e Identify existing and new civil remedies that will
increase consequences for traffickers

e Advocate for stronger, survivor-informed laws
and steadfast enforcement of those laws

e I|dentify and harness non-traditional avenues
and stakeholders to identify survivors and hold
all relevant actors accountable

Survivor Care and Empowerment:

e Use survivor experience to inform all work and
identify gaps in necessary services nationally to
create a comprehensive safety net

e Elevate leaders working on this type of
trafficking, facilitating connections across the
field

Shifting the Narrative

e Shift the media narrative away from “happy
ending” jokes and victim-shaming to one that
focuses on exploiters

e Improve the quality of information about the
lived experiences of IMB trafficking survivors

e Harness public desire to do good toward ending
human trafficking

Our Impact:

Total partner jurisdictions that we're now working with - 78 jurisdiction partners across 16 states. Partners are committed to
serving victims and tackling organized networks using a new approach.

Polaris analysts have analyzed and mapped over 5,000 IMBs for network linkages, or 86% of the total IMBs listed on commerecial
sex websites, giving the team and its partners a comprehensive picture of how IMB networks are organized across the country.

482 IMBs have been closed since the beginning of the campaign in late 2015. In 2017 there has been a 23 percentage point
increase in closures occurring in partner jurisdictions. The significant increase is means that more jurisdictions are tackling this as
organized crime and in a victim-sensitive manner in partner areas.

Recruited 20 NGO service providers into the national safety net. 15 of these 20 are in the top 4 states where IMBs are most
prevalent (CA, NY, TX, and FL) and have helped serve the 45 survivors that were identified after law enforcement operations
arrested traffickers.

New or updated local ordinances and state massage laws have been proposed or passed in 25 partner jurisdictions, including 3 at
the full statewide level. This has led to legislative improvements on new massage ordinance protections in over 1,000 cities.

-

TOP 3 TOP 3
COUNTIES WITH HIGHEST NUMBERS OF IMBS NATIONALITIES OF POTENTIAL VICTIMS
1. Los Angeles, CA 1. Chinese

2. Santa Clarg, CA
3. Orange, CA

2. South Korean
3. Mexico/Central America

Disruption Strategies provides tools, information, and connections to cities and states that join the campaign as a

committed partner. For more information, visit



http://www.polarisproct.org/imb
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Behind Illicit Massage Parlors Lie a Vast
Crime Network and Modern Indentured
Servitude

By Nicholas Kulish, Frances Robles and Patricia Mazzei
March 2, 2019

She was 49, a recent immigrant and deeply in debt to a loan shark
back home in China when she answered an employment ad three
years ago that promised thousands of dollars a month, but offered no
job description. She realized too late that she had been tricked into
working at a massage parlor in Flushing, Queens, where besides
kneading backs, she was expected to sexually service up to a dozen
men a day.

Some of the clients were violent, and the boss charged $10 a day for
her to sleep on a sofa in a room at the parlor where rats nibbled on
her food. “The customers were very terrible,” said the woman, who,
ashamed of the stigma of her former profession, asked that her name
not be used. “After you perform a service, they would find an excuse
to take the money away.” They would, she said, “do even worse
things.”

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 1/9
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In strip malls across the country, neon signs and brightly colored
placards promise hot stones, acupuncture and shiatsu with photos of
women or couples receiving relaxing shoulder rubs. But a
traditionally Asian form of therapeutic relaxation with deep roots in
big-city Chinatowns has spun off a different kind of massage parlor
that has little to do with traditional remedies. It has exploded into a $3
billion-a-year sex industry that relies on pervasive secrecy, close-knit
ownership rings and tens of thousands of mostly foreign women
ensnared in a form of modern indentured servitude.

[Read more about a thriving sex trafficking trade in Florida.]

The frequently middle-aged women who work in parlors with names
like Orchids of Asia and Rainbow Spa are often struggling to pay off
high debts to family members, loan sharks, labor traffickers and
lawyers who help them file phony asylum claims. In some cases, their
passports are taken and their illegal immigration status keeps them
further in the shadows, with some of them rotated every 10 days to
two weeks between spas operated by the same owners. Forced to pay
for their own supplies and even their own condoms, many women
must sleep on the same massage tables where they service customers
and cook on hot plates in cramped Kitchens or on back steps.

“We stopped thinking about just cages, bars and chains as the means
of coercion,” said John Richmond, the State Department’s top anti-
trafficking official. “They are using nonviolent forms of coercion.”

The recent arrest warrant filed against Robert K. Kraft, owner of the
New England Patriots — and the solicitation charges filed against
nearly 300 men in multiple jurisdictions as part of the same case —

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 2/9
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riveted national attention to a stretch of Highway 1 along Florida’s
Treasure Coast dotted with strip malls, gas stations and sapphire
ocean views. Across the region, parlors were empty and many
frequent clients were phoning their lawyers, wondering if more
warrants were going to drop.

Law enforcement officials said there were an estimated 9,000 illicit
massage parlors across the country, from Orlando to Los Angeles.
The epicenter of this national underground is the bustling Chinatown
in Flushing, in the New York City borough of Queens. Women —
typically Chinese, but also Korean, Thai and East European — arrive
at Kennedy International Airport, learn the trade and are sent out to
places like Virginia, Iowa, Texas and Florida. Women are recruited
locally through ads in Chinese-language newspapers or over the
social network WeChat.

“Flushing is the center of this network,” said Lori Cohen, the director
of Sanctuary for Families’ Anti-Trafficking Initiative, which has
interviewed around 1,000 massage workers over the past five years
and helped the 49-year-old immigrant who was sexually assaulted
leave the business after she was arrested. “They are showing up in
different parts of the country, but all of them have addresses in
Flushing, Queens,” she said.

[Read: An epic tragedy in the underground sex industry in Flushing.]

The women are paid just a sliver of the $60 or more the client pays for
an hourlong massage. Their real money — and chance at a better life
— comes in the form of tips, which they are encouraged or forced to
amplify through illegal means.

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 3/9
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A 60-year-old former massage worker from Taiwan, who agreed to be
identified only by the nickname she commonly uses, Tina, said she
was lured into working at a massage parlor in New York a decade ago
by the travel agency broker who helped secure her visa to travel to
the United States. “People come here and don’t have a place to live,”
she said. “These places offer a place to live, and it seems like a nice
idea. They say, ‘It’s not safe to keep your passport on hand, and they
will ask to hold the passport.”

She was arrested several times before getting out of the business, and
feels comparatively lucky. One close friend was spirited to Texas by
traffickers, she said, had her passport taken and was forced to see
eight to 12 customers a day. One day the tearful calls she often
received from her friend came to an abrupt halt.

“A lot of the businesses that look like either nail salons or massage
places, especially the places that offer massage, there are bad things
happening there,” she said. “It’s 100 percent organized crime.”

The ubiquity of the massage parlors offers an accessibility and sheen
of normalcy not offered by traditional brothels. And as the massage
parlors have expanded even into small-town America in recent years,
meticulously detailed review sites like Rubmaps have served as the
Yelp and Foursquare of the illicit parlor business, with graphic
anatomical descriptions of the women and explicit breakdowns of the
sexual services proffered.

Even at illicit parlors, owners and managers can claim ignorance of
the additional services offered by employees behind closed doors. The
evidence gathered during raids and searches often tells a far different

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 4/9
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tale. The police say it is common to find ledgers tracking the number
of “dates” women have had, as was found in a bust in Dallas in 2016.
In one case in Kansas, a search of the premises yielded a notebook
with handwritten Chinese-English translations that “included
sexually explicit phrases such as ‘did you bring condom’ and ‘happy
ending.”

A federal law enforcement official, speaking on the condition of
anonymity because this person is involved in active cases, said that
the most common method for smuggling women from Asian countries
was either a fraudulent tourist visa or a fraudulent work visa, such as
for nursing work. Many came as students, then overstayed to work in
the sex industry.

Many women arrive in the United States from China bearing heavy
debt burdens and try to find work in restaurants or nail salons. But
the money isn’t good enough for the five-figure debts weighing them
down. The massage jobs are presented as opportunities for fast, easy
money.

“They will talk about how they used to work in a restaurant and it
was really hard physically and they couldn’t make that much money,
and then they heard from somebody or saw an ad saying they could
make a lot more money in a massage parlor;” said Leigh Latimer, a
supervising attorney at the Legal Aid Society’s exploitation
intervention project in New York.

One reason the Asian massage parlors remain so poorly understood is
the extreme reluctance of the women to speak with the police and
even with their own lawyers.

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 5/9
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“Even though I’ve represented many, many women arrested in
unlicensed massage parlors, because of the level of distrust of people
working, almost all immigrants, almost all undocumented, they don’t
trust even their attorneys enough to let them know what’s happened
to them,” Ms. Latimer said.

Some fear retaliation by traffickers to their families in China, and
some feel morally indebted to those who helped find them a job, said
Chris Muller, the director of training and external affairs at Restore
NYC, an anti-sex-trafficking organization.

“This is a powerful exploitation tactic,” he said. “Any favor is implied
there is going to be a payment back. ‘Look at what I have done for
you. I found you a job. I found you a place to live and this is how you
repay me?’”

Small networks of spas are also common, and their ownership
structures are complex and opaque. “It’s rare that you have a mom-
and-pop business where they’re just running one,” said Lt.
Christopher Sharpe of the New York Police Department’s vice section.
“Usually if they’re running one, they have a second or a third
business.”

Bradley Myles, chief executive of Polaris Project, a nonprofit that
works to combat human trafficking, said that the madams arrested on
big raids like the recent ones in Florida — known as “mamasans” —
are often women in their 60s and 70s who have spent decades in the
sex trade but are usually pretty far down in the organization.

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 6/9



https://polarisproject.org/massage-parlor-trafficking



1/27/25,9:24 AM Behind Illicit Massage Parlors Lie a Vast Crime Network and Modern Indentured Servitude - The New York Times

Above these site managers is usually a person who appears on
paperwork as the massage parlor owner, but is often just a frontman
running a shell company. The payouts from the shell company go to
what is legally known as the “beneficial owner.”

“Very little is known of the behind-the-scene owners,” Mr. Myles said.
“They are hiding behind shell companies, hiding behind mamasans.
They are hiding behind fake people.”

In addition, the networks have groups of drivers that help move the
women from place to place. Some networks are only two or three
layers deep, others four or five.

“I’ve certainly seen indicia of larger networks and indicia of powerful
transporters,’ said the federal law enforcement official.

The Florida Department of Health disciplined 62 massage parlors or
therapists last fiscal year, up from 14 the year before, records show.
The agency receives upward of 300 complaints about unlicensed
massage facilities each year.

Department inspection reports described women inside the spas
living in tight quarters cluttered with essentials, including rolling bath
carts stuffed with toiletries, shelves lined with coffee mugs and
cooking pots and stashes of assorted snacks. The women slept on
individual cots and in some cases appeared to keep their belongings
and blankets inside locked plastic trunks.

Their IDs showed that several of them had addresses outside Florida,
including in Flushing, N.Y.; Lilburn, Ga.; San Gabriel, Calif.; and
Temple City, Calif.

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 79
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Those who are arrested are not necessarily left to their own
resources. When sheriff’s deputies in Martin County, Fla., were
interviewing Lixia Zhu, 48, one of the massage parlor employees
arrested two weeks ago, it wasn’t long before a New York lawyer
arrived and identified himself as her lawyer. The lawyer, Baya
Harrison IV, told The New York Times that Ms. Zhu used to work in
New York and that her friends had hired him to defend her.

The county sheriff, William D. Snyder, said Ms. Zhu had tearfully told
deputies and a public defender about how her passport was kept from
her in a locked safe and how the woman she worked for once
threatened her by brandishing a gun.

One woman in the Florida sting has been charged with human
trafficking, after police officers conducting surveillance saw her
shuttling two other women carrying suitcases in and out of a spa in
Vero Beach.

Bob Houston, a former F.B.I. agent who now works as a consultant to
combat trafficking, said that Thai traffickers often employ elaborate
schemes to help women intended for the massage industry apply for
tourist visas. The traffickers create false back stories, giving women
the appearance of an established life at home, including a spouse and
bank account, all to help them qualify for a tourist visa. They even
produce fake diplomas from massage schools. The tab is usually
$40,000 to $60,000, he said.

“They owe a bunch of money to the people who recruited them,” he
said.

https://www.nytimes.com/2019/03/02/us/massage-parlors-human-trafficking .html?searchResultPosition=5 8/9
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In December, 36 people in Minnesota were convicted for their roles in
a Thai sex trafficking ring that shuttled hundreds of women from
Bangkok to cities across the United States, including Phoenix, Las
Vegas, Atlanta and Minneapolis.

The women, referred to as “flowers” by the criminal organizations,
were forced to work at massage parlors with no choice about where,
when and with whom they performed sex acts until their debts were
paid off. They were permitted to move around outside the parlors only
with so-called runners working for the organization, evidence in the
case showed.

The decision by law enforcement in Florida to focus on patrons of the
establishments in such a public way rather than the women working
there has generated a lot of fear among clients.

John Musca, a criminal defense lawyer with an office in Vero Beach
whose website advertises sex crime defense, said he has received
panicked phone calls from many men who frequented the
establishments and are worried that the police are about to come
knocking.

“There are a great number of folks who are on pins and needles,” Mr.
Musca said.

Jeffrey E. Singer contributed reporting in Jupiter, Fla. Kitty Bennett and Alain Delaquériére
contributed research.

A version of this article appears in print on, Section A, Page 1 of the New York edition with the headline: Behind
lllicit Massage Parlors, a Vast Crime Web
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Santa Rosa




the City of Santa Rosa massage business ordinance and to
share some information | learned while attending an anti-
human trafficking seminar at Sonoma State University.

Ordinance Update

As many of you recall, we started this journey nearly a year
ago by meeting at the downtown library on 02/14/2024. The
purpose of the meeting was to raise awareness about the
number of massage businesses in Santa Rosa and our
shared concern that some of these establishments may
potentially be engaging in illicit activities, including human
trafficking and/or commercial sex operations. During that
meeting, we listened to subject matter experts from

the California Massage Therapy Council

(CAMTC) and Verity speak about the scope and impact of
the issue. The meeting was well attended, with more than
50 concerned citizens and local officials present. From
that meeting, the seeds were planted. Numerous City of
Santa Rosa officials, including City Council members, the
Police Chief, and the Code Enforcement team, began
working on a new City of Santa Rosa ordinance that will
serve to address the illicit massage business (IMB)
problem while ensuring legitimate massage professionals
and establishments that provide a valued therapeutic
benefit to the public are not negatively impacted. This
process was, by design, thorough and methodical.



Thankfully, the process is nearly complete, as the new
ordinance is scheduled to go before the Planning
Commission on 02/13/25 and then to the City Council for
potential adoption on 03/04/2025. Please put a
placeholder on your calendar for the 03/04 meeting
Starting at 4 p.m. at City Hall. It'll be an excellent
opportunity for all involved to celebrate a win and to
recognize and thank our City Council, Santa Rosa PD,
Code Enforcement professionals, the CAMTC, and others
for their hard work and dedication to this issue.

That said, adopting a new ordinance alone does not mean
that the IMBs will spontaneously disappear. Addressing
the issue will require time and resources from many,
including concerned citizens, to keep the issue front and
center by remaining actively engaged with the problem
over the long haul.

Anti-Human Trafficking Seminar

| waited to write and share some of what | learned until |
could update you on the ordinance rewrite process to
spare you too many emails.

This past November, | attended a two-day anti-human
trafficking seminar at Sonoma State University taught by a



law enforcement professional. What | learned during that
two-day course floored me. The scale of human

trafficking for commercial sex operations in the United
States is staggering, and its impact is felt in virtually every
community across the country, including Sonoma County.
Human trafficking for commercial sex operations is run by
organized crime organizations, including the Chinese,
Russian, and Mexican Mafia, as well as street gangs. Illicit
massage businesses in the United States, including those
in Santa Rosa, are run almost exclusively by Chinese
criminal enterprises. These criminal organizations prey on
vulnerable women and turn them into literal slaves to
make money with no regard for the victims' wellbeing while
depriving them of the most basic of human rights: personal
agency.

Thankfully, the seminar was well attended by law
enforcement, including members of the SOCO DA's office,
who are committed to addressing this issue.

Before retiring to Santa Rosa, | worked as a firefighter in
SoCal. After attending the seminar, | realized that |
witnessed human trafficking numerous times throughout
my career. Unfortunately, neither | nor the others | worked
with, including police officers, recognized the signs of
human trafficking because we never received any training



on the subject. Thankfully, there is now a requirement for
police officers and EMS providers to receive limited
training on the subject.

My firsthand experience motivates me to continue raising
awareness about an important issue for my new
hometown and me. While I'm not sure what our next steps
are as concerned citizens, I'd like to think that raising
awareness through public meetings, emailing elected
officials, and being knowledgeable about a grave human
rights issue in our community is a step in the right
direction. Please take some time to explore/read the
attached links/PDFs below to understand/refresh yourself
on the significance of the problem. It's a very big deal, and
it's happening in our community.

| will keep the updates coming and welcome ideas about
our grassroots efforts to reduce human suffering in
Sonoma County.

Kurtis Bennett
Concerned Citizen

Additional Information, Links/PDF's:

e Human Trafficking Institute



e American Psychological Association
e YouTube: Human Trafficking/Massage




From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] New code law for IMB
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:35:44 PM
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
Sent: Tuesday, February 4, 2025 4:12 PM

Tor ssi spicrinG s [

Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] New code law for IMB

Good afternoon Ms. Spierings,

Thank you for your valuable insight; it has been extremely helpful. We are currently drafting
changes to accommodate mobile massage uses, which we plan to recommend to the City
Council in March. We share your concerns regarding illicit businesses and complacent
property owners, and I’m pleased to inform you that the revised ordinance will address these
issues. The new language will ensure recourse and responsibility from both property owners
and business owners, while also prohibiting the use of neon signage.

Your input, as well as that of your colleagues, has been critical in shaping this ordinance. We
are still accepting feedback through February, so if you or your colleagues have any additional
thoughts or suggestions, please don’t hesitate to share them with us.

We’ve also compiled a list of those who wish to receive a copy of the draft ordinance, and
you’ve been added to that list. Once the draft is complete, we will make sure to send it your
way.

Thanks again for your continued engagement. Wishing you an enjoyable evening!
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

Coming March 2025, the Planning, Building, and Engineering Divisions of the City of Santa Rosa's
Planning and Economic Development Department will fully transition to an online application
submittal process through the Accela Citizen Access platform. Learn more about the Online
Permitting System here, and more information will be coming soon!

From: Je5s! spiceinGS I

Sent: Monday, February 3, 2025 3:36 PM
To: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Cc: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] New code law for IMB

Hello Lou,

| am a massage therapist and have been practicing for the past 18+ years in Santa
Rosa. | attended the meeting that was held at the Council Meeting room a few weeks
back to discuss future changing to the city's codes with local CMTs. | had meant to
reach out sooner...

| would like to receive a copy of the new code going into place. | realize you may
already be in the final draft but wanted to add and follow up on some of the comments
brought up at the meeting.

1. As discussed at the meeting, outcalls/mobile massage therapists are hard working
folks by and large. Let's be clear, no sex worker would go through the trouble to carry
a massage table to a client's house, if not needed. | am glad to hear that it will not be
prohibited in future codes. | did outcalls in the beginning of my business and it is a lot
of work. The scenarios mentioned at the meeting highlight how much of an important
service this is for some folks.

2. Something was mentioned about the frustration of the IMBs renting in a building
where the landlord is made aware that the business is not massage but an IMB. Their
response is that they are paying rent, so they are fine as long as not being told to
close down. You made a comment that they would "gently" be discouraged to stop
renting to them. | am frustrated by the obvious problem here. The responsibility
should be on the owners of building to not rent to these obvious IMBs. They make no
effort to hide what they are doing with neon "OPEN" & "MASSAGE" signs, lit up all
night. They block the windows and have cameras at entrance. Legitimate CMTs do
not have signage like this. | have at least 3 on the couple blocks around my office on



College. Two are directly across from the SRMS campus. There are at least 3 out in
the Larkfield area near schools, and in the suburbs where | live. | understand there is
sex work, sex trafficking and prostitution in all parts of the city, but these are glaring
examples of city laws being broken and it seems we cannot get out of our own way to
get them closed down! As a practitioner who has made a effort to follow the codes,
laws and pay my fees, | am discouraged that these folks can flout the law and
continue to do business. Our legal business becomes tainted by the lack of boundary
that has been allowed to happen.

3. Something else that was brought up at the meeting, that was not addressed, was
the need to create a phone number to call if you are propositioned, or had an
inappropriate advance from a client. | have had those experiences early in my career
and it was awful. If we are truly worried about sex trafficking, CMTs safety, client's
safety and setting up guidelines between genuine massage therapy from CMTs and
sex work that would be a start. Create a safe place for all of us, by having a phone
number to call to guide folks in these situations.

| do appreciate that the city is trying to address this unfortunate situation. The IMBs
are everywhere in the city and unincorporated areas. They keep popping up and |
don't see them getting shut down. | hope the rewriting of the zoning and city codes
can minimize the proliferation of these businesses, especially the ones who sex traffic
women. This is a stain on our great community.

Thank you for your hard work on this. | do appreciate this tremendously. This has
gone on for far too long.

| know it is a touchy problem and | hope you can forgive my frustrated tone.

Jessi Spierings
CMT#4838



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] IMB Draft

Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:36:52 PM
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

Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2025 3:51 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Subject: Re: [EXTERNAL] IMB Draft

Daniela,

Thank you for adding me to the list of folks slated to receive
a draft copy. I'm grateful that Mobile Massage will be
permitted. | understood that was a significant issue with
CMTs.

And a huge thank you for your quick replies and hard work
on this issue. Seeing the system work to create positive
change is a treat.
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Have a nice weekend,
Kurtis

On Thu, Feb 6, 2025 at 3:25 PM DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org> wrote:

Hi Kurtis

The exact release date is still being finalized as changes are ongoing. At the current pace,
I’m hopeful it will be completed by the end of next week. We’ve compiled a list of requests,
and I’ll make sure to add you to that list. | truly appreciate your consideration of email
requests and your assistance in facilitating the process. If there are any questions or
concerns, please feel free to encourage individuals to contact us directly. I’m more than
happy to provide any information that may help ease any anxieties.

Several people have expressed concerns about the restriction on out-call services. I'm
pleased to inform you that our direction has shifted. As part of our proposal to the City
Council, we plan to allow mobile massage services through the application/registration
process, with an Administrative Adjustment approved by the Department Director.
Additionally, we’re proposing to change the term "out-call" to "mobile massage."

Thank you again for your support and understanding as we move forward. Please don’t
hesitate to reach out if you need anything further.

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

Coming March 2025, the Planning, Building, and Engineering Divisions of the City of
Santa Rosa's Planning and Economic Development Department will fully transition to
an online application submittal process through the Accela Citizen Access platform.
Learn more about the Online Permitting System here, and more information will be
coming soon!

From: Kurtis Bennett <} G



Sent: Thursday, February 6, 2025 11:04 AM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] IMB Draft

Daniela,

Good morning. | understand that CMTs can receive a
copy of the new draft of the massage business ordinance
at some point before the planning meeting on 02/27. Can
you let me know when it's available for distribution?

| don't want to email the CMTs in the citizen's group until
it's ready to spare you from receiving premature email
requests. Have a nice day, and thank you for your
continued work.

Kurtis Bennett



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Re: Proposed SR massage ordinance
Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:38:02 PM
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

From: fred@ecostewards.org ||| G

Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 9:17 PM

To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>; Alvarez, Eddie <EAlvarez@srcity.org>; Rogers, Natalie
<NRogers@srcity.org>

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Re: Proposed SR massage ordinance

Hello Daniela DeBaca,
Santa Rosa Code Enforcement Officer,

I think that this is a terrible proposal. It will cause much more
administrative work for therapeutic massage businesses, and
cause rates for massage services to rise substantially.

The biggest citizen group that will be affected are probably
senior citizens who often need massage services for blood
pressure issues, stiffness, tension and sore joint reasons.
Some of these people need regular massage so that they can
continue to walk. They are often squeezing in massages on
small social security incomes that barely cover their survival



Santa Rosa




expenses. If you visit @ massage business, you may learn that
most of the clients are the elderly and senior citizens.

Your proposal will make massage more difficult to access for
those who have medical needs yet have tiny budgets. You will
also make massages more expensive.

You should realize that some of the city's best massage
therapists are Chinese citizens who do not have California
certificates because they were trained in China. For instance,
Michael's Reflexology (Across from the downtown post office)
uses primarily Chinese therapists who are highly skilled yet
without US citizenship or California certificates. This facility is
perhaps the least expensive massage business in Santa rosa,
yet this proposed ordinance will create a lot of extra
bureaucracy and administrative difficulty for these businesses.

From this perspective, you are not providing any benefit to the
City of Santa Rosa or its citizens.

Besides your effort will likely cause some businesses to leave
Santa Rosa and go to Rohnert Park, Sebastopol or other
nearby towns. The result will be an exodus to nearby
communities where they do not require such onerous
requirements.

What residents need much more than this massage ordinance
is the removal of gang graffiti on city property, the removal of
private property graffitti that lingers for weeks and sometimes
months in neighborhoods, including parks; ending commercial
work on private property, removing cars parked on front lawns
and yards, extracting crowds of homeless flopping in city parks
and ruining the ability of young people and students to use
those parks, and cleaning up piles of garbage in our parks.
Presently you do not do an adequate job on these easier tasks.
These are issues which you should be enforcing before you
expand the scope of code enforcement into new areas at a
time when you are still doing a poor job at providing
enforcement of the regulations which are already on the



books.

I am sorry to point out to you all of your present inadequacies,
but these are true failures of code enforcement in Santa Rosa's
neighborhoods. If you cannot adequately fulfill the present
task before you, why should we trust you to add on more jobs
and in the process make life difficult for a large sector of city
residents?

My best to you,
Fred

cc: Eddie Alvarez



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Massage

Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:38:39 PM
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

Sent: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 4:35 PM
To: Twyla Lytle_
Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Massage

Good afternoon Ms. Lytle

Thank you for reaching out with your concerns. We are currently revising the Massage
Ordinance to provide the necessary enforcement tools. The existing ordinance is outdated and
refers to laws that are either obsolete or have been relocated, limiting our effectiveness. The
revised ordinance will be presented to the Planning Commission on 2/27/25 and then to the
City Council for approval on 3/4/25. If approved, it will become law on 4/4/25.
Massage-related businesses will have 120 days to comply with the new requirements, which
include registration and certification with the City, along with documentation and background
checks (in addition to a Business Tax Certificate). The revised ordinance will introduce new
fees, penalties, fines, and legal remedies, holding technicians, business owners, and property
owners accountable for business activity. Additionally, it will address items visible from the
public right of way, such as limited hours of operation and the prohibition of neon signage.

For those interested in learning more or following the progress, presentations to the Planning
Commission and City Council can be viewed at the links below:

® Planning Commission
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® City Council
We share your frustrations and are committed to resolving these issues. If you have any

questions, please don’t hesitate to reach out - I’m happy to help.

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

From: Twyia Lyt [

Sent: Thursday, February 20, 2025 5:18 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Massage

Good evening as you know down fourth Street downtown Santa Rosa and all the way to Safeway
there is nothing but illicit massage parlors. They’re all the way down college. I'm just absolutely
floored and disgusted with Santa Rosa businesses getting licenses for this stuff. | am a business
owner | pay tremendous tax in this town. | pay business licenses. I'm a salon downtown and I'm just
appalled at how many of these happy ending establishments you guys have allowed !! This is a
problem and it’s getting worse. Please pay attention to whom your giving business licenses too!!!
Sent from my iPhone



From: Jones, Jessica

To: Kirk, Lou; Weeks, Karen; _PLANCOM - Planning Commission
Cc: Osburn, Gabe; Crocker, Ashle

Subject: RE: Massage

Date: Tuesday, February 25, 2025 4:52:39 PM

Attachments: image003.png

*FOR INFORMATION ONLY, PLEASE DO NOT REPLY TO ALL *
Good afternoon Chair Weeks and Planning Commissioners,

| wanted to clarify the comment that Lou provided below in response to the question about fees. The
resolution and associated Exhibit A that Lou mentioned are part of the Council packet for their
3/4/2025 meeting, and were not intended to be part of the Planning Commission packet. Asyou are
aware, fees are not within the purview of the Commission. However, similar to the high-level fee
information provided verbally to the Commission during the recent review of the Landmark Alteration
Permit process, staff will be prepared to give an overview of the fees that will be presented to the
Council on 3/4.

Thank you,
Jess

Jessica Jones | Deputy Director - Planning

Planning and Economic Development Department |100 Santa Rosa Avenue, Room 3 | Santa Rosa,
CA 95404

Tel. (707) 543-3253 | Mobile (707) 292-0963 | jjones(@srcity.org

Coming March 2025, the Planning, Building, and Engineering Divisions of the City of
Santa Rosa's Planning and Economic Development Department will fully transition
to an online application submittal process through the Accela Citizen Access
platform. Learn more about the Online Permitting System here, and more
information will be coming soon!

From: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 7:27 AM

To: Weeks, Karen <KWeeks@srcity.org>;, PLANCOM - Planning Commission
<planningcommission@srcity.org>

Cc: Jones, Jessica <jjones@srcity.org>; Osburn, Gabe <GOsburn@srcity.org>; Crocker, Ashle
<acrocker@srcity.org>

Subject: RE: Massage
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Good morning Chair Weeks,

Thank you for your email. | appreciate the time you took to review this. Please see my
responses below:

1. What are the fees? | didn't find them listed anywhere.
There is a Resolution and Attachment A that should have been included. | will verify
today that this supporting documentation has been provided.

2. Isthere enough staff to do the CUP's in a timely manner? Will they be phased in?
The Massage program itself does not require CUP’s. Pursuant to existing code
provisions, CUP’s may be required as prerequisite actions relative to Home
Occupations and “Live/work” or “Work/ Live” uses. It is not anticipated that a large
number of CUP’s will be processed as a result of the new massage ordinance.

3. Same question for the Administrative Adjustment
There is adequate staffing to process Administrative Adjustments. As with the
CUP’s, it is not anticipated that a large number of Administrative Adjustments will
be processed as a result of the new massage ordinance.

4. Should there be a definition of administrative adjustment in the definition section?
Not necessarily. The term is meant to be self-explanatory and is internally
consistent with similar staff actions in Title 20 (such as Minor Adjustments) which
are not separately defined.

5. Canthe massage fees and business license fees be done at the same time?
No. The Business License Tax is administered by another Department within the
City and is prerequisite to a Massage Establishment Certification.

6. How will the massage fees be handled? Same as business license fees?
Massage Establishment Certification fees will be collected at the time of
application and/or renewal in a manner similar to other Planning and Economic
Development fees.

7. Section 20-49.040 A5 - what if a therapist works less than days per month?
If a Certified Massage Therapist works (10) or less days per month, they are not
required to be listed as an employee of the Massage Establishment for purposes of
updating the City.

8. Section 20-49.050 A2 - what if there is not enough room (thinking of where | go at ME
Spa)



This is a foundational program requirement and must be observed. Staff, however,
will have case-by-case discretion and - in circumstances such as the one you
describe — will work cooperatively with the establishment owner to find a solution
(one idea here would be to have the placards in a binder that is prominently
displayed in the reception and waiting area).

9. Section 20-49.050 B2 and B3 - seem to contradict
There is no contradiction. Massages must stop by 10:00 PM, and the patrons must
exit the establishment by 10:30 PM. This provides time for the patrons to get
dressed and make payment.

10. Section 20-49.050 B4 - define visitor vs "helper" if someone is disabled (further on in the
document) page 17 sectioniii
The section accounts for this through the phrase, “except as otherwise provided
herein.” This being said, | will look to the Planning Commission and the City Council
for direction.

11. Section 20-49.050B5 - what about clerical staff who check you out? Should that be
added?
No. This section only pertains to those minimal personnel allowed to be onsite
between 11:00 PM and 6:00 AM.

12. Section 20-49.050 H1 - I've been to Spas where they serve a complimentary glass of
champagne - seems like this would be prohibited.
This currently.is prohibited under existing laws, unless the California Department of
Alcoholic Beverage Control (ABC) provides either a license or an exemption.
Additional City approvals may also be required, depending on the level of the
alcohol related use.

13. Section 20-49.090 -l think there should be 2 separate sections - 1 for Exemptions and 1
for Administrative Adjustments. It's confusing having them combined.
Thank you. The section was envisioned to contain all of the relief provisions for the
ordinance in a single location. While | am not contemplating any changes to this
Section currently, | will certainly keep this suggested change in mind pending
direction from the Planning Commission and the City Council.

14. Section 20-49.090 A6 - why are they exempt - | feel they shouldn't be
This is acommon allowance seen in other ordinances within the State and was also
introduced as a matter of concern during our outreach with the massage
establishment community. | am not contemplating any changes to this Section
currently but - similar to my response above - will certainly keep potential changes



in mind pending direction from the Planning Commission and the City Council.

15. Section 20-49.090 B - clarify what is meant here — confusing
This Section allows businesses - for which massage is only a minor or incidental
component - to request Administrative Adjustment in order to obtain relief from
some of the ordinance’s provisions. | am happy to respond in further detail if

needed.
| hope this brief response is helpful to you.

Thank you again,
~Lou

Lou Kirk (he/him/his) | Assistant Chief Building Official

Planning & Economic Development [100 Santa Rosa Avenue, Room 3 | Santa Rosa,
CA 95404

Hours: Monday - Thursday, 6:30 AM - 5:30 PM

Tel. (707) 543-3248 | Lkirk@srcity.org

Coming March 2025, the Planning, Building, and Engineering Divisions of
the City of Santa Rosa's Planning and Economic Development Department
will fully transition to an online application submittal process through the
Accela Citizen Access platform. Learn more about the Online Permitting
System here, and more information will be coming soon!

@S.mm Rosa

From: Weeks, Karen <KWeeks@srcity.org>

Sent: Friday, February 21, 2025 4:21 PM

To: Kirk, Lou <|kirk@srcity.org>

Cc: Jones, Jessica <jjones@srcity.org>; Osburn, Gabe <GOsburn@srcity.org>; Crocker, Ashle

<acrocker@srcity.org>
Subject: Massage

Afternoon

| reviewed the packet and here are my comments/questions:

1. What are the fees? | didn't find them listed anywhere.

2. Is there enough staff to do the CUP's in a timely manner? Will they be phased in?



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
document) page 17 section iii

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

13. Section 20-49.090 -1 think there should be 2 separate sections - 1 for Exemptions and 1
for Administrative Adjustments. It's confusing having them combined.

14. Section 20-49.090 A6 - why are they exempt - | feel they shouldn't be

15. Section 20-49.090 B - clarify what is meant here - confusing
Let me know if you have questions on my comments/questions

Karen



From: Michael Cook

To: Kirk, Lou

Cc: PLANCOM - Planning Commission

Subject: [EXTERNAL] PUBLIC HEARING - MASSAGE ORDINANCE MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS
Date: Sunday, February 23, 2025 6:46:07 PM

Good evening,

As a nieghbor of one of these massage parlors, I fully support the adoption of this ordinance
and implementation. Thank you to the City for working through this process quickly and
efficiently. My neighbor parlor is regularly open past its 9:00 pm closing time. The only
thing I do not like about this ordinance is that the ordinance allows these massage parlors to be
open until 10:00 pm. I do not think that this should be allowed and would propose an 8:00 pm
closing time. What massage parlor needs to stay open past 8:00 pm??? One that is
encouraging things that are not legal.

Please make this change to an earlier closing time, I would very much appreciate it!

Michael A. Cook



From: DeBaca, Daniela

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] Regarding Massage and Adult Entertainment Resolutions
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2025 9:15:38 AM
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
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 9:15 AM

To: 'Bloomer, David'_

Cc: Kirk, Lou <lkirk@srcity.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] Regarding Massage and Adult Entertainment Resolutions

Hello Mr. Bloomer

Thank you for raising this issue. We agree that legitimate massage therapy and illicit
businesses labeled as adult entertainment are distinctly different and worlds apart. This is one
of the key reasons it is addressed within the work process of this ordinance. The goal was
twofold: first, to address the lack of clarity in the existing code regarding permit requirements,
and second, to ensure the new massage ordinance clearly distinguishes between the two types
of businesses. By handling both matters simultaneously, we can streamline the process.

Regarding the new massage ordinance, our aim is to further separate and clarify the existing
classification of "adult entertainment business" from legitimate massage establishments,
reinforcing that they are unrelated. This will help codify that distinction. For the record, these
changes do not legalize prostitution. During the revision of the Massage Ordinance, part of the
due diligence involved identifying areas in the code that overlap, reference, or relate to each
other, including definitions. These “loose ends” are being addressed as part of the process.

For further clarification, please see page 7 of the Staff Report, which states: “While this is not
directly related to the Massage Ordinance, through the review of the Zoning Code, staff
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Adult Entertainment Businesses

In addition to the proposed changes related to massage businesses, staff is also
recommending a change to Land Use Tables 2-6 and 2-10 to clarify the
permitting requirements for “adult entertainment business” uses.

related to permitting requirements in the Commercial and Industrial Zoning
Districts. Specifically, Tables 2-6 and 2-10 do not identify what, if any, permits
are required for adult entertainment businesses.

The commercial and industrial land use tables simply include an “S,” which
stands for “see specific use regulations for permit requirements,” and refers the
reader to Chapter 20-40, Adult Entertainment Businesses. However, while the
specific regulations located in Chapter 20-40 include applicability and location
requirements, it refers back to the Allowed Land Uses and Permit Requirements
tables in Division 2 for permitting requirements. As such, there is no Code
provision that currently specifies what, if any, permits are required for adult
entertainment businesses.

Staff recommends adding the requirement for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for
adult entertainment businesses in the City’s commercial and industrial zoning
districts. Given that the purpose of Chapter 20-40 is “to prevent community wide
adverse economic impacts, increased crime, decreased property values, and the
deterioration of neighborhoods which can be brought about by the concentration
of sexually-oriented businesses in close proximity to each other or proximity to
other incompatible uses such as schools for minors, churches, parks and
residentially zoned districts or uses,” requiring a CUP, which would be acted on
by the Planning Commission, is appropriate to allow the review and analysis
necessary to ensure compatibility with surrounding uses.




identified an error in Zoning Code Sections 20-23.030 and 20-24.030 related to permitting
requirements in the Commercial and Industrial Zoning Districts.”

I hope this explanation helps clarify the concerns. Please don't hesitate to reach out if you have
any further questions.

2. Adult Entertainment Businesses

In addition to the proposed changes related to massage businesses, staff is also
recommending a change to Land Use Tables 2-6 and 2-10 to clarify the
permitting requirements for “adult entertainment business” uses. While this is not
directly related to the Massage Ordinance, through the review of the Zoning
Code, staff identified an error in Zoning Code Sections 20-23.030 and 20-24.030
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
adult entertainment businesses in the City's commercial and industrial zoning
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




From: Bloomer, David <} G

Sent: Monday, February 24, 2025 11:03 AM

To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] Regarding Massage and Adult Entertainment Resolutions

Hello Daniella,

| see that the Planning Commission meeting to go over the resolution for massage therapy is
scheduled for this Thursday.

| am curious about the inclusion of “Adult Entertainment” as a resolution in the same meeting.

Unless the specifically illicit businesses are being labeled as adult entertainment, | am not clear why
that particular zoning is in conjunction with the resolution for massage therapy.

| see the two resolutions and have copied them. Are there any other documents that you could
send me to help bring some clarity?

Legitimate massage therapy and illicit businesses pretending to be massage businesses are worlds
apart. | remember in Petaluma a dozen years ago, the two were clouded together before the final
draft was completed and | am wondering if something similar is occurring in Santa Rosa.

We fully support the city’s determination to clean up the proliferation of illicit businesses of
prostitution. We also stand firmly behind legitimate massage therapists in being able to build and
maintain healthy practices within our city.

| would appreciate your help in understanding the proposed actions of the city.

Thank you,

David Bloomer

National Holistic Institute
Santa Rosa Campus Manager
(707) 639-4066 ext 3600



From: Beverly May

To: PLANCOM - Planning Commission

Subject: [EXTERNAL] Comments for PUBLIC HEARING - Item 11.1 MASSAGE ORDINANCE MUNICIPAL CODE
AMENDMENTS AND ADULT ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS ZONING CODE AMENDMENT

Date: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 4:32:52 PM

Attachments: Comments for Planning meeting 2.27.2025.docx

Please include the attached comments for the planning hearing Feb 27, 2027

Beverly May

California Massage Therapy Council

Director of Governmental Affairs, Human Trafficking and IT
One Capitol Mall Suite 800

Sacramento, CA 95814

(650) 281-6290

bmay@camtc.org



Comments for PUBLIC HEARING – Item 11.1 MASSAGE ORDINANCE MUNICIPAL CODE AMENDMENTS AND ADULT ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS ZONING CODE AMENDMENT 



The Resolution # 1 25-100PC dated 2/21/2025

Comments:

1. Page 2, first “Whereas” refers to “Massage Practitioners and Massage Establishments that have received their certification from or through a certifying body deemed equivalent or superior to CAMTC in terms of demonstrating proficiency in the practice of massage; and”

a. Problem – CAMTC does not certify massage establishments, nor does any other body.

b. Problem-. Business and Professions Code Section 4611 (a) It is an unfair business practice for a person to do any of the following:

(1) To hold himself or herself out or to use the title of “certified massage therapist” or “certified massage practitioner,” or any other term, such as “licensed,” “certified,” “CMT,” or “CMP,” in any manner whatsoever that implies or suggests that the person is certified as a massage therapist or massage practitioner, unless that person currently holds an active and valid certificate issued by the council pursuant to this chapter.



The Resolution 2- 25-100PC dated 2/21/2025

Comments:

 This document is not clear as to whether the city still considers massage to be Adult Entertainment, including whether it is simply “revising Adult Entertainment Businesses” under Recreation, Education & Public Assembly Uses. CA Government Code Section 51034   (c) states “Nothing contained in this chapter shall authorize a city, county, or city and county to do any of the following:

(2) Define a massage establishment as an adult entertainment business, or otherwise regulate a massage establishment as adult entertainment."

However, reading the draft ordinance in its entirety, it does appear that proposed revisions to the massage ordinance include reasonable amendments to the zoning code that do not classify massage as Adult Entertainment.

Draft Ordinance amending Repealing Title 6, chapter 6-32 and adding new Chapter 20-49 and amending section 20-23.030 and 20-24.030, 20-50.020(A), 20-52.060 and 20-62.030(B)(2) and amending section 20-70-.02



 Comments:

1. The last "whereas" on page 1 refers to another certifying body. And the definition of "Certified Massage Therapist" or "Therapist" reinforces that the city will recognize another certifying body. However, Business and Professions Code Section 4611 (a) It is an unfair business practice for a person to do any of the following:

 To hold himself or herself out or to use the title of “certified massage therapist” or “certified massage practitioner,” or any other term, such as “licensed,” “certified,” “CMT,” or “CMP,” in any manner whatsoever that implies or suggests that the person is certified as a massage therapist or massage practitioner, unless that person currently holds an active and valid certificate issued by the council pursuant to this chapter.”

2. 20-49.020 Definitions.

 “Certified Massage Therapist” or “Therapist” means any Individual certified by CAMTC as a Certified Massage Therapist pursuant to California Business and Professions Code Section 4600 et seq, or by another Certifying Body deemed equivalent or superior to CAMTC in terms of demonstrating proficiency in the practice of massage, who, for compensation, performs or engages in any act of Massage as defined in this section. Pertaining to this chapter, the terms "masseur," "masseuse," “certified massage practitioner,” or "Independent Therapist or Practitioner" shall have the same meaning as "Certified Massage Therapist" or “Therapist” when certified from or through a Certifying Body. “Certified Massage Therapist Certificate” means the certificate issued by a Certifying Body, required by this chapter, authorizing a Certified Massage Therapist to practice Massage Therapy in conjunction with a certified Massage Establishment."

 What is the purpose of this? No other massage certification entity is recognized in state law. The National Certification Board for Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork (NCBTMB ) requires use of "Board Certified, NCBTMB". Some specialties such as Rolfers have a private certification, but they also fall under most definitions of massage and will qualify for CAMTC certification.

 Therefore, I believe the city needs to revise the definition of "Certified Massage Therapist" and delete the definition of "Certifying Body".

 Although the city has definitions and guidelines for "Certified Massage Establishment" and "Certified Massage Establishment Certificate" it is not clear what is issued if each owner is not a "Certified Massage Therapist".

 "independent Therapist" appears to leave a major loophole- if you look at ads for Illicit Massage Businesses (IMBs) they often advertise "new girls every 2 weeks". Why not just define an independent contractor- many cities include the definition within "employee".

“Certifying Body” is addressed above and this definition should be deleted to comply with statute-

“Certifying Body” means an organization, entity or authority that establishes standards, which can include, but are not limited to educational requirements, examinations, experience, and background checks, in order to evaluate and recognize competency in the field of massage, and through which certification satisfactorily demonstrates qualifications and commitment to professional standards. Examples of certifying bodies include but are not limited to state boards and national organizations.

Section 20-49-040A 5. - Most cities want to know within 3-5 days any new staff and those who have left.  

Section 20-49.040 C allows 10 days after the fact to receive notice of amendment. Is this what the city prefers?

20-49.090 C3 is one of the sections that is likely to leave the massage therapist confused.

20-49.120A.1. Is there a reason the city wishes to tolerate three violations in two years?

1i. Again refers to an unnamed Certifying Body,

Section 20-49.120 A (1)(a-g)- Does the city want to allow 3 or more violations within this section within 2 years before proposing revocation of the Massage Establishment Certificate?  This seems generous. If so, what if the owner/operator changes with that period, perhaps with a straw owner? Some of these Procedural Violations are also included in CA. Business and Professions Code section 4609, which are considered “Gross Violations” in Section 20-49.120 A (2)



Respectfully Submitted,

Beverly May

California Massage Therapy Council

Director of Governmental Affairs, Human Trafficking and IT

One Capitol Mall Suite 800

Sacramento, CA 95814

(650) 281-6290

bmay@camtc.org








Comments for PUBLIC HEARING - Item 11.1 MASSAGE ORDINANCE MUNICIPAL CODE
AMENDMENTS AND ADULT ENTERTAINMENT BUSINESS ZONING CODE AMENDMENT

The Resolution # 1 25-100PC dated 2/21/2025

Comments:

1. Page 2, first “Whereas” refers to “Massage Practitioners and Massage Establishments that
have received their certification from or through a certifying body deemed equivalent or
superior to CAMTC in terms of demonstrating proficiency in the practice of massage; and”

a. Problem - CAMTC does not certify massage establishments, nor does any other
body.

b. Problem-. Business and Professions Code Section 4611 (a) Itis an unfair business
practice for a person to do any of the following:

(1) To hold himself or herself out or to use the title of “certified massage therapist” or
“certified massage practitioner,” or any other term, such as “licensed,” “certified,”
“CMT,” or “CMP,” in any manner whatsoever that implies or suggests that the person is
certified as a massage therapist or massage practitioner, unless that person currently
holds an active and valid certificate issued by the council pursuant to this chapter.

The Resolution 2- 25-100PC dated 2/21/2025
Comments:

This document is not clear as to whether the city still considers massage to be Adult
Entertainment, including whether it is simply “revising Adult Entertainment Businesses” under
Recreation, Education & Public Assembly Uses. CA Government Code Section 51034 (c) states
“Nothing contained in this chapter shall authorize a city, county, or city and county to do any of the
following:

(2) Define a massage establishment as an adult entertainment business, or otherwise
regulate a massage establishment as adult entertainment.”

However, reading the draft ordinance in its entirety, it does appear that proposed revisions to the
massage ordinance include reasonable amendments to the zoning code that do not classify
massage as Adult Entertainment.

Draft Ordinance amending Repealing Title 6, chapter 6-32 and adding new Chapter 20-49
and amending section 20-23.030 and 20-24.030, 20-50.020(A), 20-52.060 and 20-
62.030(B)(2) and amending section 20-70-.02

Comments:

1. The last "whereas" on page 1 refers to another certifying body. And the definition of
"Certified Massage Therapist" or "Therapist" reinforces that the city will recognize another



certifying body. However, Business and Professions Code Section 4611 (a) It is an unfair
business practice for a person to do any of the following:

To hold himself or herself out or to use the title of “certified massage therapist” or “certified
massage practitioner,” or any other term, such as “licensed,” “certified,” “CMT,” or “CMP,” in
any manner whatsoever that implies or suggests that the person is certified as a massage
therapist or massage practitioner, unless that person currently holds an active and valid
certificate issued by the council pursuant to this chapter.”

2. 20-49.020 Definitions.

“Certified Massage Therapist” or “Therapist” means any Individual certified by CAMTC as a
Certified Massage Therapist pursuant to California Business and Professions Code Section 4600 et
seq, or by another Certifying Body deemed equivalent or superior to CAMTC in terms of
demonstrating proficiency in the practice of massage, who, for compensation, performs or
engages in any act of Massage as defined in this section. Pertaining to this chapter, the terms
"masseur,’ "masseuse," “certified massage practitioner,” or "Independent Therapist or Practitioner”
shall have the same meaning as "Certified Massage Therapist" or “Therapist” when certified from or
through a Certifying Body. “Certified Massage Therapist Certificate” means the certificate
issued by a Certifying Body, required by this chapter, authorizing a Certified Massage Therapist to
practice Massage Therapy in conjunction with a certified Massage Establishment."

n ¢

What is the purpose of this? No other massage certification entity is recognized in state law. The
National Certification Board for Therapeutic Massage and Bodywork (NCBTMB ) requires use of
"Board Certified, NCBTMB". Some specialties such as Rolfers have a private certification, but they
also fall under most definitions of massage and will qualify for CAMTC certification.

Therefore, | believe the city needs to revise the definition of "Certified Massage Therapist" and
delete the definition of "Certifying Body".

Although the city has definitions and guidelines for "Certified Massage Establishment" and
"Certified Massage Establishment Certificate" it is not clear what is issued if each owner is not a
"Certified Massage Therapist".

"independent Therapist" appears to leave a major loophole- if you look at ads for Illicit Massage
Businesses (IMBs) they often advertise "new girls every 2 weeks". Why not just define an
independent contractor- many cities include the definition within "employee".

“Certifying Body” is addressed above and this definition should be deleted to comply with statute-

“Certifying Body” means an organization, entity or authority that establishes standards, which can
include, but are not limited to educational requirements, examinations, experience, and
background checks, in order to evaluate and recognize competency in the field of massage, and
through which certification satisfactorily demonstrates qualifications and commitment to
professional standards. Examples of certifying bodies include but are not limited to state boards
and national organizations.

Section 20-49-040A 5. - Most cities want to know within 3-5 days any new staff and those who have
left.



Section 20-49.040 C allows 10 days after the fact to receive notice of amendment. Is this what the
city prefers?

20-49.090 C3is one of the sections that is likely to leave the massage therapist confused.
20-49.120A.1. Is there a reason the city wishes to tolerate three violations in two years?
1i. Again refers to an unnamed Certifying Body,

Section 20-49.120 A (1)(a-g)- Does the city want to allow 3 or more violations within this section
within 2 years before proposing revocation of the Massage Establishment Certificate? This seems
generous. If so, what if the owner/operator changes with that period, perhaps with a straw owner?
Some of these Procedural Violations are also included in CA. Business and Professions Code
section 4609, which are considered “Gross Violations” in Section 20-49.120 A (2)

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



From: Brown, Madeline

To: Brown, Madeline

Subject: FW: [EXTERNAL] new massage ordinance
Date: Thursday, February 27, 2025 9:24:27 AM
Attachments: image001.png

From: Kirk, Lou
Sent: Thursday, February 27, 2025 9:21 AM

To: I

Cc: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: RE: [EXTERNAL] new massage ordinance

Good morning Gina,
Thank you for your email.

| want to assure you that the City's commitment to supporting local businesses
remains steadfast. | believe we share a common goal in ensuring the effective
implementation of this ordinance, and | want to offer the following clarifications to
address your specific concerns:

® Therapist Attire: The regulations regarding therapist attire are directly derived
from existing State Law and are therefore incorporated into the ordinance to
maintain consistency and compliance.

e "Adult Entertainment Businesses™ Classification: The inclusion of "Adult
Entertainment Businesses" within the ordinance is not intended to conflate
those establishments with legitimate massage therapy practices. Quite the
opposite; the proposed changes to permitting requirements aim to further
distinguish and separate these distinct business categories and reinforce that
they are completely unrelated.

® Legal Compliance: The ordinance has undergone thorough review by our City
Attorneys. | am particularly interested in understanding your specific concerns
regarding potential non-compliance with the Massage Therapy Act. Your
detailed feedback on this matter would be invaluable.

| would welcome the opportunity to discuss this ordinance with you in greater detail at
your convenience. Furthermore, please note that the ordinance will be presented to
the City Council for first reading on March 4th and for second reading on March 18th,
providing you with additional opportunities for public input.

Thank you for your engagement in this important matter.



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
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From: Gina Perine, CMT, CMLDT || G

Sent: Wednesday, February 26, 2025 5:28 PM
To: DeBaca, Daniela <ddebaca@srcity.org>
Subject: [EXTERNAL] new massage ordinance

Hello,
| am out of town this week and can not attend the meeting this Thursday, tomorrow.

However, the proposed ordinance as written is unclear and a huge step backward.
We were assured that during the review, the approach would be business friendly to
massage and respectful. This is far from it.

| am dismayed that after 20+ years of practice, continuing education, compliance and
serving clients, the City of Santa Rosa is proposing a regulation for massage that truly
is about regulating prostitution. Really? Explaining to me what | can and can not
wear? It would appear that whomever is on this project can not let go of the past.

Prior to moving to Santa Rosa, | worked in two cities that underwent this process.
This is the worst example | have seen.

And some of this proposed regulation is non-compliant with the Massage Therapy
Act. Have the City attorneys reviewed for compliance?

This is disheartening to say the very least. | would hope that the planning
departments and city council can see the wrong in this and ask staff to do a better
job.



| truly realize that Santa Rosa has a problem with human trafficking and prostitution. |
have lived and worked here for only 3 years but it was immediately apparent to me.
And that desperately needs to be dealt with. However, demeaning massage therapy
to prostitution and "adult entertainment" is not the right move.

Sincerely--

Gina Perine

Gina Perine, CMT, CMLDT

iinaperine.com





